TrackLive User Manual

Contents

Configure GPS Tracker (via SMS commands)	2
Create User Account	2
Workspace Overview	3
Settings	7
Dashboard	8
Reports	8
Tasks	12
DTC (Diagnostic Trouble Codes)	13
Maintenance	13
Object control	14
Image gallery	18
Chat	19
Billing / Subscriptions	20

Please note: iTrack Live is a professional tracking platform and designed to be compatible with a wide range of GPS trackers. The features and capabilities of each type of tracker will vary from model to model so you will likely find that some functions within the software will not be compatible with your device.

Configure GPS Tracker (via SMS commands)

Before you can use your iTrack GPS tracker on iTrack Live you will need to configure the device by sending the following SMS commands:

- ➢ begin123456
- > adminip123456 213.136.81.111 10200
- > apn123456 payandgo.o2.co.uk (see table below for correct APN code)
- > gprs123456 (this turns on GPRS mode)
- > fix060s***n123456 (this tells the device to upload data every 60 seconds)

MOBILE NETWORK PROVIDER	APN CODE
O2 (PAYG)	payandgo.o2.co.uk
O2 (Pay Monthly)	mobile.o2.co.uk
T-Mobile	uk.general.t-mobile.uk
Orange / EE	everywhere
Vodafone (Pay Monthly)	wap.vodafone.co.uk
Vodafone (PAYG)	pp.vodafone.co.uk
Tesco Mobile	prepay.tesco-mobile.com
Virgin Mobile	goto.virginmobile.uk
GiffGaff	giffgaff.com

Create User Account

- Visit <u>www.itracklivetracking.com</u>
- Click 'create account'
- > Enter your e-mail address this will be your username
- > An email will be sent to you with a temporary password
- Return to login page and enter username & password (you can change the password in the settings once logged in)





Recover password or create account

Workspace Overview

After you've logged in to the platform you will see the main page. The main page allows access to most common tracking features and settings. You can monitor object location on the map, configure zones, view tracking history and driver behaviour, view reports + much more.



- 1. Top panel this panel provides access to: Help, Settings, Show point, Search address, Reports, Logbook, DTC, Object control, Image gallery and Chat.
- 2. User account panel this panel provides access to: Language selection, Billing, My account, Mobile version and Log out.
- 3. Left panel this panel provides access to: Object list, Events, Places (Markers, Routes and Zones) and History.
- 4. Object details panel all important information about selected object is show in this panel: current location, sensors, services and etc.
- 5. History panel panel which provides access to history and detailed route information, together with exporting tools.
- 6. Map controls
 - > Map zoom control changes map zoom level.
 - > Objects enable/disable object visibility.
 - > Labels enable/disable object labels.
 - > Markers enable/disable marker visibility.
 - > Routes enable/disable route visibility.
 - > Zones enable/disable zone visibility.

- Clusters useful feature for those who has large number of objects and markers. Clusters split markers and objects into groups, which according to map zoom level will reveal content inside of it.
- > Street view enable/disable street view.
- > Live traffic shows status of traffic on map (available only with Google Maps).
- > Fit objects on map sets map zoom level to fit all objects.
- > Ruler measures distance between points.
- > Measure area measures area.
- 7. Route controls enable/disable loaded history route features.
- 8. Maps allows to change currently used map: OSM, Google, Bing, Mapbox, Yandex or any other custom TMS or WMS maps.
- 9. Object details the most important information about selected object is show in this popup: current location, sensors, services and etc.

Top panel

Top panel is used to quickly access sections (Settings, Reports and Object control, Chat and other).



- 1. About allows user to check which version of software you are currently using.
- 2. Help redirects to this manual.
- 3. Settings settings menu allows to add new objects, events and etc.
- 4. Dashboard common statistics.
- 5. Show point focus map on entered coordinates.
- 6. Search address helpful and easy to use tool for searching address on map.
- 7. Reports allows to create various reports.
- 8. Tasks manage tasks, useful feature for drivers.
- 9. RFID and iButton logbook review RFID and iButton activity.
- 10. DTC diagnostic trouble codes.
- 11. Maintenance manage all available maintenance records.
- 12. Object control allows to send SMS and GPRS commands to GPS device.
- 13. Image gallery allows to receive images with location from GPS devices.
- 14. Chat allows to send and receive text messages from supported devices. Currently works with Android GPS tracker app.

Left panel

Objects list tab allows to view available objects, find them on map, view object route history and edit object settings.



- 1. Objects tab view current objects status.
- 2. Events tab history of events can be viewed (overspeending, entering or leaving zones and etc.).
- 3. Places tab allows to create, edit and delete zones and markers.
- 4. History tab view history, create reports, export them to various formats etc.
- 5. Search allows to find objects by name.
- 6. Reload reloads objects list.
- 7. Add object allows to add new object.
- 8. Visibility checkbox turns on or off objects visibility on map.
- 9. Follow checkbox centers marked object in the middle of the screen every time GPS device has refreshed its position, if multiple objects selected - map zooms the way that all of them remain visible.
- 10. Object information object name, date and time of last received location.
- 11. Speed indicator shows current object speed.
- 12. **Ignition (ACC) indicator** shows ignition state. Ignition (ACC) sensor should be configured in order to use this feature.
- 13. GPRS indicator shows GPRS and GPS status.
 - ➢ Grey icon no GPRS and GPS.
 - > Orange icon no GPS signal.
 - **Green icon** GPRS and GPS are OK.
- 14. Quick access allows to see object history, control objects using commands and edit object settings.

Account panel

In account panel you can change interface language, renew subscription, see logged user e-mail (click to edit user details), switch to mobile version and exit system using logout button.



Bottom panel

Bottom panel displays object data, history graph and location messages table.

Data	Graph	Messages							
001 O	dometer		1 r	ni	小 Speed	I			0 mph
-1- St	atus	Off	1ine 1 h 33 min 27	s	🕒 Time ((position)	2	020-05-13 1	7:12:22
🛓 AI	titude		0	ft	🕒 Time ((server)	2	020-05-13 1	7:12:26
👍 Ar	ngle		170) °					
P Po	sition	53.23	39090 °, -1.463919	•					
Data Gra	aph Messages								
Speed	× ► 1	🔳 x1 🗸							
40 mph									
30 mph 20 mph							A.	\sim	_
10 mph					~				
	16:46	16:47	16:48	16:49	16:50	0	16:51	16:52	16:53
Data	Graph Mess	ages							
	ime (position)	✓ Time (server)	Latitude	L	ongitude	Altitude	Angle	Speed	
20	20-05-12 18:50:0	5 2020-05-12 18:50	:08 53.238989	-	1.463953	0 ft	0	0 mph	alarm=tracker
20	20-05-12 18:49:5	5 2020-05-12 18:49	:58 53.238998	2	1.463942	0 ft	0	0 mph	alarm=tracker
20	20-05-12 18:49:2	5 2020-05-12 18:49	:28 53.238937	-	1.463911	0 ft	0	0 mph	alarm=tracker
20	20-05-12 18:48:5	5 2020-05-12 18:48	:57 53.238955	-	1.464005	0 ft	0	0 mph	alarm=tracker
\$ \$								I< < Page −1	of18 > > 50 🗸

To remove multiple objects, do the following:

- > Mark objects by clicking checkbox on the left.
- > Click the cog/settings symbol in the bottom left corner
- > Click 'Delete'
- > Confirm action

Learn more about features in the history section of this user manual.

Map context menu

Right click your mouse button anywhere on the map to access context menu.



Street view - opens a new window with Google street view of selected location.

Route to point - calculates fastest route from current object location to selected point. To use this feature, object must be selected in left panel. Calculated route later can be used to trigger event.

Note: feature uses free external service, which sometimes might be overloaded and will give no response, during that time route to point feature won't work. It might take some time to start working again.

New marker - place new marker in selected place.

New route - draw route.

New zone – draw geofence zone

Settings

Main functionality located in settings section - add, edit, duplicate objects and related elements, add object groups, drivers, sensors, events. Set up user interface and create sub accounts. Here you can manage your objects, customise the user interface and manage your account.

Settings section located in top panel, press settings button as shown below:



Dashboard

Dashboard is an information management tool that visually tracks, analyses and displays important data of tracking account. Dashboard is efficient tool to monitor objects, events, maintenance, tasks and mileage in central location.

To access dashboard, press the Dashboard menu item in top panel.



Reports

Reports allows user to generate all available information related to object activity for the selected period of time.

To access reports, press Reports button in top panel.



Reports window will appear.

Reports									
Reports Ge	nerated								
	Name 🔿	Туре	Format	Objects	Zones	Sensors	Daily	Weekly	
Drives and	d stops	Drives and stops	HTML	3	0	0	1	1	6/1
Fuel level		Fuel level graph	HTML	3	0	0	1	1	6/1
	aformation	General information	HTMI	3	0	0	1	1	伤!前

Main reports tab represents list of created report types.

To create new report, do the following:

- 1. In the top panel press Reports menu icon.
- 2. In Reports tab left bottom corner press '+' icon.
- 3. Report properties window will appear.

Report properties									×
Report									
Name			Format	HTML					~
Туре	General information	~	Show coordinates	4					
Objects	Nothing selected	~	Show addresses						
Zones	Nothing selected	~	Zones instead of addresses						
Sensors	Nothing selected	~	Stops	> 1 min		\sim			
Data items	All selected	~	Speed limit (mph)						
Ignore empty reports									
Schedule			Time period						
Daily			Filter	Today					~
Weekly			Time from	2020-05-13		00	\sim	00	\sim
Send to e-mail	E-mail address		Time to	2020-05-14	简	00	~	00	~
	S Ge	enerate 🗎	Save X Cancel						

Report

Name - report name.

Type - choose report type.

- General information provides basic information like: route length, top speed, average speed, consumed fuel and etc.
- > General information (merged) general report information is shown in a row.
- Object information provides all known information about object which is set in object settings.
- > Current position provides information about current objects position and status.
- Current position (offline) provides information about current objects position which are offline.
- Drives and stops provides the same information as general report but adds objects stops and driving information, like address where object stopped, duration of intervals between stops and etc.
- Travel sheet provides coordinates and addresses of stops, length between stops and object fuel consumption.

- > Mileage (daily) report about daily mileage.
- Overspeeds all recorded cases of speeding will be reflected in report as well as additional information such as how much speed has been exceeded, excess time and etc.
- > Underspeeds all recorded cases of underspeeding will be reflected in the report.
- Zone in/out entry time in each zone, exit time out of zone, stay time in zone, this option requires to select zones.
- > Events provides events information: time, event name coordinates and address.
- > Service provides service information.
- Fuel fillings shows object fuel fillings history. Results depends on fuel fillings accuracy settings.
- Fuel thefts shows object fuel thefts history. Results depends on fuel thefts accuracy settings.
- Logic sensors provides information about logic sensors, when they were turned on and off with duration.
- > Driver behavior (RAG by object) provides score about driver behavior (overspeeds and harsh driving), driver must be assigned to object in order to use this report.
- > Driver behavior (RAG by driver) provides score about driver behavior (overspeeds and harsh driving), driver must be assigned to object in order to use this report.
- > Tasks information about available tasks.
- > RFID and iButton logbook information about driver assign changes.
- DTC (Diagnostic Trouble Codes) show object DTC error codes, this feature must be supported by GPS device.
- > Speed speed graph.
- > Altitude altitude graph.
- > Ignition ignition graph.
- > Fuel level fuel level graph, fuel level sensor must be configured.
- > Temperature temperature graph, temperature sensor must be configured.
- Sensor graph of selected sensors.
- > Routes report contains map with object routes.
- > Routes with stops report contains map with object routes and stops.
- > Image gallery report includes images received from devices, useful for printing.
- Format select format in which report will be generated: HTML, PDF or XLS.
- > Show addresses addresses will be shown in reports near to location points.
- Zones instead of addresses zone names will be shown in reports instead of addresses.
- Stops set time of stops that will be included in report, used to eliminate traffic light stops.

> Speed limit (kph) - set speed limit for Overspeed and Underspeed reports.

Schedule

- > Daily reports will be sent daily for previous day.
- > Weekly reports will be sent weekly, every Monday for previous week.
- > Send to e-mail enter e-mail addresses separated by comma to send reports to.

Time period

- > Filter simple way to set time period of report.
- > Time from/ Time to precise way to set time period of report.

Objects

Select object or objects for which you want to create report. Hold "Ctrl" key for multiple selection. Availability of data depends on chosen report type.

Zones

This option allows to select zones whose details will be seen in report. Zone selection is available only if report type Zone in/out is chosen. Hold "Ctrl" key for multiple selection.

Sensors

Choose sensors which will be displayed in report. Hold "Ctrl" key for multiple selection.

Data items

Choose data items which will be displayed in report. Hold "Ctrl" key for multiple selection. Availability of data depends on chosen report type.

Generated reports

Generated reports section displays all reports which were generated, and provides fast access to open them again without need to generate them again.

Tasks

Tasks allows user to create entries related to upcoming work which should be done. Set start and end address, priority, task status. Useful feature to manage important tasks. Tasks can be accessed via Android app.

To access tasks, click 'Tasks' button in top panel.



To add task do the following:

- 1. In left bottom corner press '+' icon.
- 2. Task properties window will appear.

Task properties										×
Task										
Name										
Object	Tracker				~					
Priority	Low				~	Description				
Status	New				~					11
Start						Destination				
Address					Ŷ	Address				Ŷ
From	2020-05-13		00:00	\sim		From	2020-05-13	00:00	\sim	
То	2020-05-13	1000 1111	00:00	\sim		То	2020-05-13	 00:00	\sim	
					🗎 Save	× Cancel				

Task

- > Name new record (task) name.
- > Object object which will be related to this task.
- > Priority priority type can be used to better organize important tasks.
- Status task status.
- > Description additional information related to this task.

Route start

- > Address start address where task begins.
- > From/To date and time interval when task should be started.

Route end

- > Address end address where task ends.
- > From/To date and time interval when task should be ended.

DTC (Diagnostic Trouble Codes)

Diagnostic Trouble Codes allows to see error codes received via OBD compatible devices.

To access DTC, press DTC menu item in top panel.



DTC (Diagnostic Trouble Codes) window will appear.

DTC (Dia	ignos	tic Trouble	Codes)											×
												Delete all	Export to CSV	Show
Object		All objects		~	Time from	2017-11-14	a	00	~	00	~			
Filter		Whole period	bd	~	Time to	2017-11-14	()	00	~	00	~			
	Tir	me 🗸	Object		Code							Position		

Maintenance

Maintenance section allows to review and edit all service records.

To access Maintenance section, press Maintenance 'tools' icon in top panel.

رفى	i	ļļļ	a	9	0	E. V	/ 10	ġ.	*	•			0
Maintena	nce												×
	Object 🔿	i i	Name		Odometer	Odometer left	Engine hours	Engine hours le	Days	Days left	Event		
Bus		Oil	change		60481 km	2439519 km	508 h	2	2	12	×	/ 1	^
Bus		Filt	er change		60481 km	Expired (50481 ki	508 h	8	-		×	/亩	
Bus		Ins	urance		60481 km	575	508 h	*	1824	Expired (1464 d)	×	1	
🗌 Car		Ins	urance		38787 km	100	0 h	2	2219	Expired (1859 d)	×	/亩	
Truck		Ап	nual service		41597 km	Expired (11597 ki	0 h	2		9	×	/ 1	
Truck		Ins	urance		41597 km	240	0 h	8	1853	Expired (1493 d)	×	/亩	

Object control

This section allows to send commands to object GPS device to perform some actions.

To access Object control, press Object control menu item in top panel.



Object control window will appear.

Object	control								×
GPRS	SMS Schedule	Templates							
Object		Truck		~	Template	Custom			~
Commar	nd	ASCII 🗸					Send	d	
	Time ∽	Object	Name			Command	Status		
□ +	2018-07-09 20:09:17	Truck	Stop tracking		tracking_stop		4	ŵ	~
- +	2018-07-09 20:09:12	Car	Stop engine		stop_engine		()>	窗	
□ +	2018-07-09 20:09:04	Bus	Start tracking		tracking_start		0	窗	

Note: read GPS device user manual to get all available GPRS commands. Make sure in which way your device receives commands (via SMS or GPRS). SMS gateway must be configured in order to send commands via SMS.

- > Object choose object which you want to control using commands.
- > Template choose predefined command template.
- Command command can be sent directly without need to create template (\r\n allowed after string, example: my_command \r\n).
- > Send send command to GPS device.

Important! New command must be added in template section to appear in templates list.

SMS

	~
	~
Send	
atus	
	^
St	Send Status

Note: read GPS device user manual to get all available SMS commands. SMS gateway must be configured in order to send commands via SMS.

- > Object choose object which you want to control using commands.
- > Template choose predefined command template.
- > Command command can be sent directly without need to create template.
- > Send send command to GPS device.

Important! New command must be added in template section to appear in templates list.

Schedule

Object control schedule allows user to put command sending on schedule so commands will be executed on chosen week day or exact time.

								×
Schedule	Femplates							
lame 🔺	Active	Schedule	Gateway	Туре		Command		
	1	Exact time	GPRS	ASCII	STOP		/ 宣	
- AND	ame 🔺	ame 🔺 Active	ame 🔺 Active Schedule	ame Active Schedule Gateway	ame Active Schedule Gateway Type	ame Active Schedule Gateway Type Exact time GPRS ASCII STOP	ame Active Schedule Gateway Type Command	ame Active Schedule Gateway Type Command

Create command schedule

To create new command schedule, do the folowing:

- > In top panel press Object control menu icon.
- > In Schedule tab left bottom corner press '+' icon.
- > Command properties window will appear.

Schedule prope	rties							×
Schedule				Time				
Active	•			Exact time			00:00	~
Name				Monday	20	00:00 🗸		
Protocol	All protocols		~	Tuesday		00:00 🗸		
Objects	Nothing selected		~	Wednesday		00:00 🗸		
Template	Custom		~	Thursday		00:00 🗸		
Gateway	GPRS		~	Friday		00:00 🗸		
Туре	ASCII		~	Saturday	5	00:00 🗸		
Command				Sunday		00:00 🗸		
		B Save	X Cance	el				

Templates (advanced programming users only)

Object control command templates are used to add list of commands for multiple use so you don't need to enter the same command each time. To add GPRS commands you need to know the GPRS protocol of the tracking device. This feature is for advanced users only and not meant for general users. If you require a particular template adding to your user account then please contact iTrack customer services.

GPRS SMS Schedule Templates			
Name A Proto			
	ocol Gateway	Type Comma	nd
Start tracking	GPRS	ASCII tracking_start	/ 亩 ^
Stop engine	GPRS	ASCII stop_engine	/ 1
Stop tracking	GPRS	ASCII tracking_stop	/ 亩

Create template

To create new command template, do the following:

- > In top panel press Object control menu icon.
- > In Control tab left bottom corner press '+' icon.
- > Command properties window will appear.

Command properties

Template					
Name					
Hide unused protocols					
Protocol	All protocols	~			
Gateway	GPRS	~			
Туре	ASCII	~			
Command					
Variables					
%IMEI% - Object IMEI					
	🖹 Save 🗙 Cancel				

- > Name template name.
- > Hide unused protocols only used protocols will appear in protocol list below.

×

- > Protocol list of all available protocols.
- **Gateway** gateway type, GPRS or SMS.
- > Type command type ASCII or HEX.
- Command command string which will be sent to device (\r\n allowed after string, example: my_command \r\n).

Note: After template is created, it will appear in schedule properties template select box.

Image gallery

This section allows to receive images from supported devices.

To access Image gallery, press Image gallery menu item in top panel.



Image gallery window will appear.



S 10 K < Page 1 of 1 > >| 25 ∨

Image gallery is fully supported by Android, Bofan, Fifotrack and Topten devices.

Note: In order to use Image gallery with Android device you must:

In 'edit object' section choose GPS device: Mobile (Android).

or

run iTrack Live Android application and click start tracking. As soon as application detects device location, ITrack Live system will add it as Image gallery compatible device.

Chat

This section allows user to send and receive messages between supported devices. To access Chat, press Chat menu icon in top panel.



Chat is fully supported by Android devices.

Only supported devices will be listed in chat object list. Select object to start conversation.

Note: In order to use Chat with Android device you must: in edit object section choose GPS device: Mobile (Android).

or

run Android iTrack Live application and click start tracking. As soon as application detects device location, iTrack Live system will add it as Chat compatible device.

Billing / Subscriptions

Billing section allows user to order subscription to iTrack Live and activate objects. To access Billing, press the Billing menu 'basket' icon in account panel.



Billing window will appear. Billing section represents all purchased plans.

	Billing					×
	Billing allows to purcha confirmed, sometimes	ase additional plans and extend object activity per it may take a while.	riods. Purchased pla	ns will appear in be	low list after payme	ntis
	Time 🗸	Name	Objects	Period	Price	
						*
-	5	K < Page 1 of	1 >> 50 ¥		No record	ds to view

Purchase plan

To purchase new billing plan, do the following:

- 1. In account panel press Billing menu 'basket' icon.
- 2. In billing window left bottom corner press '+' icon in the bottom left corner.
- 3. Purchase plan window will appear.
- 4. Press purchase 'basket' icon of chosen plan.

Pur	chase plan					×
	Name	Objects	Period	Price		*
>	1 Year Subscription	1	1 year	20 GBP	朣	
>	2 Year Subscription	1	2 years	35 GBP	ìÈ	
>	5 Year Subscription	1	5 years	65 GBP) <u></u>	

Note: Purchased plan will be automatically added to your account within 5 minutes.

Activate objects

To activate objects, do the following:

- 1. In account panel press Billing 'basket' menu icon.
- 2. On available plan press 'spanner' Use plan icon.
- 3. Billing plan window will appear.
- 4. Mark object which should be activated by clicking checkbox on the left.
- 5. Press the 'tick' Activate button at the top right corner.

Billing plan - A	ccess plan - A50				×
Objects: 50	Period: 1 year	Selected: 0		🗸 Activa	ate
Apply current plan	to below selected objects.				
	Name	IMEI	Active	Expires on	
Bus		2222222222222222	~	2020-01-01	\sim
Car		11111111111111	×	2020-01-01	

As soon as purchased plan is assigned to your account, licenses can be used at any time they won't expire. Object will be active one year starting from activation date.

If after particular period of time activated object is no longer needed, you can delete it safely. License won't be lost, it will be automatically brought back to billing section, including the remaining period.